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Kimberly LaxSdn
MR. McANDREW: That was Exhibit 22

to the motion in liminae.

The Court: Right.
M (o
MR. McANDREW: And the point of K,N‘ gd’)
it, Ms. Lawson has been talking about the TPR L,@fi;r;f\
ieigation;»eheErial, this is the decision. Crii{

7y

These are the factual findings of the Court.

4]
The Court entered an order on the motion in
liminae saying that the findings of the Family
Court referenced in paragraph 16 of the
indictment, and these are the findings, this
decision are admissible but with a cautionary
instruction from the Court that the findings do
not definitively determine that abus; dideoridid
notwtake place, but rather are relative to the
defendants' state of mind and motive in
continuing to make allegations against
Ms. Belford, and as motive for the defendants'
stalking conduct. And as we argued in our
briefs, it's this decision that takes things to
the next level thereafter.

The Court: You have accurately

conveyed my ruling. I have the redacted 308.

Defense, is everyone clear on what the proper
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417
1 scope is?
2 MS. CHAVAR: Yes, Your Honor.
3 MR. IBRAHIM: Yes, sir.
- MR. EDELIN: Yeas 5
5 MR. McANDREW: With that I think
6 we're prepared to proceed.
7 The Court: The only thing I would
8 say 1is keeping in mind the patience of the jury,
9 rather than in too much detail covering all the
10 nuances of the decision, to the extent we can
13 move it forward, I am watching them, and I do
12 think that in terms of painting a bigger
13 picture, that's the most important thing to do.
14 MR. McANDREW: I do not.want to
15 wear out my welcome with them, so I'm sensitive
16 to that.
17 The Court: Why don't we bring in
18 Ms. Lawson while we're getting the jury and then
19 we'll be ready.
20 (Jury entering the courtroom at
23 D25 a..m,)
22 The Court: Good morning, ladies
23 and gentlemen, please be seated, everyone. You
24 will have one important vote to take later today
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2418
1 and that is whether the lunch the Court is going
2 to provide is any good. It doesn't need to be
3 unanimous, but by all means let us know. And
4 I'm glad we're able to do that on a rainy day.
5 Mr. McAndrew, we have Ms. Lawson
6 on the stand?
7 MR. McANDREW: We do, Your Honor.
8 And we're prepared to proceed.
9 The Court: Please.
10 MR. McANDREW: Good morning,
i everyone.
12 BY MR. McANDREW:
13 Qi Good morning, Ms. Lawson. Welcome
14 back. We left off yesterday talking ;bout
15 var;ous pieces of correspondence that you had
16 received from Tom and Lenore Matusiewicz. Do
17 you recall that?
18 A. Yes, I do.
19 678 And we went through a number of
20 documents; correct?
2. A. Yes, we did.
22 Q. Now, just to be clear for the
23 jury, is that the sum total?
24 The Court: Mr. McAndrew, the
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2419
1 absence of the mics -- I think we're live.
2 BY MR. McANDREW:
3 6. Just to be clear, was that the sum
4 total of documentation you received from Tom or
5 Lenore Matusiewicz or any other member of the
6 Matusiewicz family?
7 A. No, I did receive other
8 correspondence from other members. I believe
9 that was everything I received. I mean, not
10 everything I received in the package was
e included in these, but I believe these were all
12 of the mailings from Tom and Lenore Matusiewicz.
13 But I did get other correspondence from other
14 family members. There was Gloria, I }emembered
15 her name in the shower, Gloria Kula and also
16 Melinda Kula sent me documents and
17 correspondence.
18 Ol Were they along the lines in terms
19 of subject matter the types of documents we
20 looked at yesterday?
21 A. Yes. The one from Gloria Kula was
22 the letters to Dr. Marsha Orlov, and it was just
23 I was asked to send these to you by Lenore
24 Matusiewicz.
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2420
1 @ I believe, correct me if I'm
2 wrong, but I believe we were, we were discussing
3 a correspondence in the March 2011 time frame
- when we stopped yesterday?
5 A. Yes.
6 Q. And I believe we also covered that
q there was a hearing on or about March 2nd, one
8 of the TPR trial hearing dates was in March as
9 well?
10 A. Yes.
L4 Q. I want to move forward now from
12 March and there was another hearing in June?
13 A. Yes, there was.
14 Q. And was that the last ev;dentiary
15 hearing of the TPR trial?
16 A. It was the last evidentiary
17 hearing, yes.
18 Q. And that was on or about June
19 23rd?
20 A. Yes.
21 Q. And during that hearing, Christine
22 Belford testified?
23 A. I believe she did.
24 Q. All right. David Matusiewicz
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2421
1 testified as well?
2 A. I believe he did.
3 Q. Okay. If you're not clear, that's
- fine.
5 After that hearing, is there
6 another court session at which evidence is
i presented?
8 A. There is one more hearing where we
9 did the closing arguments and also Don Roberts,
10 who is the attorney for David Matusiewicz,_ in
11 . the interim had filed a motion to present
1.2 7K»additional evidence after the close of trial so
1.3 we considered that, but then it was just closing
N arguments, no witmessas. .
15 . 0. Without getting too much in the
16 weeds on the procedural details. After the
17 Court hears argument, does it issue a decision?
18 A. It takes it under advisement, not
19 from the bench it did, then the Court issues an
20 opinion in August.
21 Q. I am pulling up what you should
22 have there is Government Exhibit 3087
23 A. Yes.
24 Q. Can you take a look at that and
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2422
1. tell me if you have seen it before?
2 A. Yes, this is the opinion of the
3 Court on the petition to terminate parental
4 rights.
5 Q. Is this the final decision that
6 the Court issues at the end of the case deciding
7 the issue?
8 A. Yes.
9 Q. And it is submitted on July 13,
10 2011, meaning -- what does submitted mean?
1 A. That means that the closing
12 argument was completed and the decision was
13 submitted to the Court. So we were done with
14 everything that was going to be give;.to the
15 Court and it's submitted and that's when the
16 Court considers.
947 Q. So the issue is under
18 consideration of the Court at that point?
19 A. Yes. The next one down.
20 Qs Says written decision signed.
271 What is that date?
22 A. August 198Eh" of 20711 .
23 Q- What does that mean, decision
24 signed?
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2423

1 A. That means that the judge signed
2 the opinion on that day, so on the back there's
3 a signature of the judge and there's a line and
4 they will write the date that they sign the

5 opinion.

6 Q.. When you say on the back, you're

7 referring to the last page of the decision?

8 A. Yes.

9 Q. All right. And just to be clear,
10 these were the attorneys who appeared in the

11 case listed here?

12 A. Yes.

13 Q. And that's the judge and how do

14 you pronounce the judge's name? .

15 . A. Judge Crowell.

16 Q- And she's a judge of the Family

17 Court of the State of Delaware?

18 A. Yes.

19 Q. All right. Now, we're not going
20 to read this entire thing, but I do want to
24 orient the jury to what it contains.
22 A. Okay.
23 (6% HEEYaGiidicialivdecision, so we're
24 going 0 g0 rather gquickly, but if you flip to

Hawkins Reporting Service
715 North King Street - Wilmington, Delaware 19801
(302) 658-6697 FAX (302) 658-8418

A2140



Case 1:13-cr-00083-GAM Document 291 ' Filed 06/18/15 Page 22 of 325 PagelD #: 5084
2424

1 the next page you see there's an introduction

2 and procedural background, right?

3 A. Yes.

- Q. That lays out -- that's exactly

5 what it sounds like, right?

6 A. Yes, it's what happened before we

7 got to her closing the case, everything that's

8 happened to date.

9 Q. If you proceed a few more pages

10 you get to the background facts; is that right?
], A. Yes.

12 Q. And then there are subsections in

13 the background facts discussing different

14 portions of the factual history of tﬁé case; 1is
15 thap right?

16 A. That's correct.

(7] 0. If you go to page 8, I think it

18 is, and I'm just going to highlight a few, but

19 there are various aspects here, correct?

20 A. Yes.

21 (S You'll see page 8 has a Subsection
22 E, the psychological effects of the kidnapping

23 of the children, correct?

24 A. Yes.
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Qs If you continue on, you will see
that Subsection F is entitled the children's
attitude toward father?

A. Yes.,

Q. If you continue onto page 14,
right above the section that begins mother's
mental health, you'll see there's, for example,
a discussion on March 2nd, 2011, you see that?

A. Yes.

Q. Can you read just that line to
give the jury a sense of this?

A. Starting with on March 2nd?

Q. Yes.

-

A On March 2nd, 2011, when father
was asked by the GAL in these proceedings
whether he still believes that mother is abusing
the children, he replied I can't answer whether
she is or not at this moment, I know that she
did. He told Doctor Romirowsky and Doctor Orlov
that he still believes that mother sexually
abused Laura.

Q. Okay. Now, these are the findings
of the Court, right?° - And then there's the

mother's mental health, another section on that.
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2426
1 There's a section on that?
2 A. Yeah. And just in case, I don't
3 know, GAL is what the family court refers to in
4 shorthand as the attorney guardian ad litem.
5 Any time you see GAL, they are referring to the
6 position of attorney guardian ad litem.
7 (619 There's a section at the end of
8 the mother's mental health where the Court
9 describes the mother's demeanor; is that right?
10 A, Yes. Mother's demeanor in the
11 courtroom on seven different days and during her
12 extended testimony on two different days
13 reflected an extremely composed, very
14 reasonable, appropriately concerned ;arent with
15 surprisingly little anger or animosity toward
16 father and no apparent desire for any revenge,
179 especially admirable, the Court finds
18 considering all the trauma to which father's
19 actions have subjected her and her children.
20 (a2 All right. Moving on, we get to a
24. portion of the opinion where the judge sort
22 of -- where the Court is discussing the
23 termination of parental rights and the standard
24 for such; right?
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A. Yes.

Q. Those are the legal standards, so
to speak?

A. Yes.

Q. We're going to skip over those.
And if you go to page 22 of the document, I'm
referring to the page when I say page 22, they
are these numbers down to the bottom right
corner?

A. Right.

QL There's a section on best interest
ofE-therchildren; Jof the child here,; but —-

A. Yes.

°

Q. The actual language. And this
describes various factors that relate to that
analysis, correct?

A. Correct.

Qi All right. And including a
Subsection 2, do you see that on page 237

A. Yes. And these are following the
best interest factors that I am required to
assess and present an opinion on to the Court.
They are in the statute set up directly.

O So this is the analysis -- these

Hawkins Reporting Service
715 North King Street - Wilmington, Delaware 19801
(302) 658-6697 FAX (302) 658-8418

A2144




Case 1:13-cr-00083-GAM Document 291 Filed 06/18/15 Page 26 of 325 PagelD #: 5088

2428

1 were the judge's findings, but you had to look

2 at these same factors and argue them to the

3 Court, correct?

4 A. Correct, these and other factors,

5 but these are what are included in what they

6 have to consider.

q Q. Subsection 20, page 23, 1is

8 entitled what?

9 A. The wishes of the child as to his
10 or her custodian and residential arrangements.
1. Q. All right. And 4f you could just
T2 read the first line.

13 A. All three children are said by the
14 therapist who talked with them to be ;ery happy
15 andnfeeling very safe and secure living with

16 mother.

1.7 Qs And then down below, what is

18 clear?

19 A. What is clear is that at least

20 Laura and perhaps Leigh feared being removed

21 again from mother by father and his family.

22 Laura is particularly angry at him both for what
23 he did and for his lies about going to Disney

24 World and about her mother's alleged death. She
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wrote in a letter to him that she wants an

explanation from him and that she was scared to

Nnd I F Davi d
?\chaall b d

see him but may want to see him when she is 18 write + vhok

exp\ O\h“h.o n
Lawura vandedd

and in quotes, old enough to call the police. Focen DA %

trnshnt eowld

She also stated in a letter that, quote, I'm have depniiely

sorry that I don't have any good feelings for

you.

24,

and interrelationship of the child with his or
her parents, grandparents, siblings, persons
cohabitating in the relationship of husband and
wife with a parent of the child, any other
residents of the household or persons who may

significantly effect the child's best interest.

read.

section at the top?

sentence.

to see any of her father's relatives, in

I'll read the subheading, the interaction

£ led ancther
clhharqe on
Deovid.

Q. Okay. There's a section on page

-

A. Yes.
Qi May be the longest subheading I've

If you go to the next page, 25, there's a

A. Yes.
Q. And 4if you conld read that first
A. Laura is adamant about not wanting
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parenthesis, his parents and sister. And Leigh,

the autistic child, screams when she is shown a\wvaoho +« wWhoat
rMad =2 Hhese
ch; (dren 40
fronm  (OVIAY
HaelY f'a“\e//
last saw over two and a half years ago. v qrandAothe
+o I\V'\FCLhH
thens with
Suchk hatred
towsard Fhe~
these headings, but they continue on, the p achualdly

Caans & fh@”" h
S ea” on

child's adjustment to his or her home, school &W=" §. &7 éq

picture of her paternal grandmother whom she

Q. All right. And I'm going to read

and community. Obviously that says his or her. b
That 1 i t tailored to th ticul ‘“‘fih Reve
a anguage is no ailore o] e particular by Gold =

pLcbare cf

children in this case; is that right? Dovid '~ bher
dvacd e”
. Right. That's just a direct bdmﬂd S -
yﬁqb(t e
language from the statute. ;&H (oviNS
her des
Q. That's right out of the statute.

=

Okay. Section 5 is mental and physical health
of all individuals involved and then it's broken
down between mother and father, right?

A. VeSS

Q. All right. Elherevsvarsection
entitled father, a subsection entitled father's
neglect attitude toward mother?

A. Yie s,

Q. All right. And then another
section 2 that begins father's accusation of

mother's sexual abusej; 1§ that right?
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2431

1 A. Yes.

2 Q. And this recounts the accusations?
3 A. Yes.

4 Q. And I"1ll just highlight guickly.

5 Including that Laura's hymen had been torn, that
6 she was wearing two pairs of underpants and I

) believe there's a mention of the lollipop in

8 here, but I'm not sure.

9 A. Yes.

10 Q. Do you know?

11 A. I believe there is.

12 Q. All right. Well, this will --

13 obviously the jurors will be able to read this.
14 On the second page the judge's reporg goes into
15 a bit of the rationale for her belief that or

16 her conclusions with regard to the allegation;
iy T SEthatwritght?

18 A. Yes.

19 Qi And the factual finding that the
20 Court makes is here; is that right?

24 A. Yes.

22 61 And if you could read that.
23 A. Yes. This judge does not find
24 father's accusations to be credible and believes
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2432
1 they were made up to provide father and his
2 mother, once they were caught, with a defense in
T"I:S VS
5 their criminal proceedings. Even father's own (Nt ard R
the +&hmony
4 expert, Doctor Orlov, stated in these Of Peqggq
deﬁeu,Z%da
5 proceedings, in quotes, it's almost like it, and;rorgiU s L
naN -
h . s chri'chne
6 then in parentheticals, the sexual abuse EJerS s
7 allegations came up after he was found. And
8 that's the part that I have a genuine concern )
9 there, end guote. The scxual
chuwot
: ; ol \egaon®
10 Q. All right. And it continues on were toid h
tHne avh o b ed
11 here? oftel Hhey were
FOUrul,b""*
distussed W'H‘S
12 A. Yes. o other
sever
pr o 4o th.
13 Q. Could you read that? :
L]
14 A. So father is vague about exactly y £ I8
15 when he learned about the sexual abuse other
16 than that it was in July or August, 2007, even
07 though he also stated that it took two months to
18 prepare to leave. Notwithstanding what he
19 claims was evidence horrible enough to justify
20 his kidnapping his children, to sell his home
23 and his practice and to flee to Central America,
22 he continued to let the children spend their
23 usual time with mother in the interim before he
24 left. And for a father who went to the ends of
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1 the earth to find a treatment for his daughter's
2 autism, he never sought out any therapy or
3 treatment for Laura. Most importantly he never
4 went to any of many possible resources in the
5 community for help for Laura. He did not call
6 the police, he did not contact the children's
7 doTtoE ] TATEL. Biponta=«
8 @ And then we go over to the next
9 page, which is 29.
10 A. -- Hospital for Children or the
11 Children's Advocacy Center. He did not take And Hhe lauyer
h‘e d.é d‘:“‘ss
. . (-8 € w {5
12 Laura to any counselor, nor did he contact hls*yé P
Y . VE {4 wes ks
13 own counselortat Ehe time. He did not contact PLidr he: Soatl’
. talt fFhe ILdS
14 raura's school. BHBe did not contact any of the ¥ leave the

(ounynf becamga
N matbec
15 many experienced layers he had had during the YV« s alog
: H\a Other j e
he syrode of OE

16 " course of his divorce proceedings. He did not*hgﬁJ»th+?$m.
17 contact the family nor file an emergency PFA, a

18 procedure with which he was familiar, nor

19 request an emergency order to suspend

20 visitation. This geourt can enly cenclude that

21 the contacts were not made, the help never

22 sought and the counseling never regpg

23 because father did not then really e

24 mother had abused Laura at that ti‘n
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M

Q. And this just continues on. We're
not going to read through the Court's entire
findings, but there's another subsection,
father's limited remorse; is that correct?

A. Yes.

Q. Another subsection onto page 31
entitled father's deceit and manipulation; is
that correct?

A. Yes .

Q. With discussions about particular
things on page 32 that Laura had reported and if
you could just read this to give the jury a
sense of this.

A. When father was told that Laura
reported that he had told her in Central America
that her mothet had committed suicide and was
lead, he denied telling her that and said that
£ Laura said it, she was a liar.

Q. All singht. And 4t continues. on,
“here's another subsection called distrust of
yuthority?

A. Yes.

Q. And if we could just read the

E%ginning portion of that.
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his family is also a disturbing feature of his
personality. If he really did believe that his

daughter was sexually abused, it is scary to

A. Father's distrust of anyone but

g I‘S S ~of
‘C:h £ e ©

think that he trusted no one outside his oF O vl $€
pevioralhy .
immediate family, not the police, not the T Sad

Sag Hhos ERS

medical profession, not the child protective d.syaaly -

system,

all oF theb=
_SL;S)-QM"'& S 0.[5'0

not the educational system, not his

~ ]
counselor, not his attorneys and not the legal Jx:: ;,)@t\iﬁng“
A

sy stem.

violate the family court.

intentionally violate the Family Court order
also is very concerning, raising questions about
future compliance with court orders. His
violation was not a quick impulsive knee-jerk

reaction, but one that took at least several

months,

likely longer to plan and --

on and the Court ultimately reaches the
conclusion. And if I can just get to that, this

is one statement, thus --

The fact that he would intentionally

A. The fact that he would

if one believes his story, and most

Q. We can stop there. This continues

A. Thus with great reluctance,

—
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1 considering all the factors of Section 722, the
2 GAL's position and the grave concerns expressed
3 above, the Court finds by clear and convincing
4 evidence that it is in the children's best

5 interest for the father's parental rights to be
6 terminated.

7 O Thank you.

8 The Court: Does that complete the
9 discussion of the findings, Mr. McAndrew?

10 MR. McANDREW: It does. I was

i simply going to mention the appeal, but if Your
12 Honor prefers.

13 The Court: Ladies and gentlemen
14 of the jury, in terms of the admissigllity of
15 some of the history of the case, I have told you
16 that from time to time we will hear about

17 different events.

18 So I have allowed you to hear the
19 findings of the Family Court with respect to the
20 termination of pagental rights. All right. As
21 relevant background information. That does not
22 definitively conclude that no abuse took place
23 because that issue is in front of the Court

24 here, but what you just heard about what the
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Dot o
~ . - g’k Yo,
1 Family Court held might be considered as o~ L] HhiS
_ _ pmbaiﬂj
2 relevant to potentially a motive for future S va\je e
; ; : . JWH afe o
3 things that occurred including the stalking that Guily 4 v erd, o
(n?ou":»*
4 the Government alleges occurred. previow
0(51/‘1, ons C‘f
5 Remember, I said this before, when & jl*dﬁﬂ?
6 a judge says this is admissible, what that ; »
7 means, it is something for you to consider. AllNo dowbt B
MY le\A
8 right? But you must consider it in light of all Heod [ F o did.
SO e P‘?‘O‘C
9 the evidence that you hear and in light of the beLf“e'f o
udﬁ& sa, N oy
10 arguments of down. All right? So you have now fhen f peush
€ 4nue .
11 heard this, I have told you why you heard it, {3fﬁﬁﬁuj$§°*
Ao pnlSfajes.
12 these findings are not automatically binding on ——
13 you, but they're part of the evidence for you to
e
14 consider in the case.
15 ‘ MR. McANDREW: Thank you, Your
16 Honor.
27 BY MR. McANDREW:
18 0. Ms. Lawson, once the decision of
19 the Court is issued, was there an appeal?
20 A. There was an appeal filed by David
21 Matusiewicz.
22 Q. And to what court is the decision
23 appealed under Delaware law?
24 A. The Supreme Court of the State of
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Delaware.

Q. And the appeal goes all the way
through to the decision in the Supreme Court of
the State of Delaware?

A. Yes, it does.

Q. Without getting into the details,
did the Supreme Court of Delaware affirm or

uphold the decision of the Family Court?

' And jusSt
A. The Supreme Court affirmed or b ecocuus<e Fhe
h. ghest courf
agreed with the opinions that it stand as I~ the state

of DE oaffhyms
‘he ded s, on

written. b thow

[owe

[(9;4(-"’/ wNou(d k
Q. And about when did that occur, if Jyewr EyER & .

“yr o Cwnr
you know? Ch' ldreq?
o

A. I believe that happened around .
February of 2012, somewhere in that range.

Q. The Supreme Court of Delaware is
the highest court in Delaware?

A. Hiese

Q. After the appeal is concluded and

the decision is affirmed, is that the end of the
TPR litigation?

A. That is the end of the TPR
litigation.

MR. McANDREW: Thank you. Your
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24
1 Honor. I'll tender the witness. Thank you.
2 The Court: All right. Counsel,
3 who wishes to go first?
4 MR. EDELIN: Your Honor, with the
5 Court's permission.
6 The Court: Of course.
7 CROSS-EXAMINATION
8 BY MR. EDELIN:
9 Q. Good morning, ma'am.
10 A. Good morning.
11 Qs How are you?
12 A. I'm good. How are you?
13 Qe Wonderful. Thank you.
14 I"m going to ask your i;dulgence
15 for a minute because I want to go back to some
16 of what you said yesterday just to help remind
7 myself.
18 You were appointed by the Court to
19 serve as the guardian ad litem; is that right?
20 A. Yeah, the attorney guardian ad
21 litem.
22 Q. Attorney guardian ad litem?
23 A. Yes.
24 Q. In that capacity, it is your role,
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2440
i your function to serve as the children's in this
2 case, or child if there is only one child, best
3 interest?
4 A. To represent their best interest,
5 yes.
6 @ Okay. And this is in an official
q capacity, you have been appointed by the Court
8 to do that?
9 A. Yes..
10 Q.. And this is something that you do
11 on a fairly regular basis?
12 A. Yes.
13 Q. And in your official capacity, you
14 reach out and you speak to the partigg involved
15 in ;he matter?
16 A. E do.
17 Qs AndVimsyeur official capacity, you
18 request and expect those parties to give you
19 their side of the story?
20 A. £ do.
21 (6] Andiipart of their side .of the
22 story could certainly include receiving
23 documents, and you asked them to send me
24 whatever documents you want to me to look at to
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1 help me make my decision?
2 A. I=hdo.
3 Q. You want as big and complete a
4 picture as you can possibly get because
5 naturally we want to get this right?
6 A. Correct.
7 Q. And in this case in particular,
8 you followed that protocol?
9 A. T do.
10 Q. You reached out, you asked them
1 for documents, you told them to tell you
12 whatever they wanted to tell you to help you
13 make your decision?

®
14 A. Yes.
15 . Q. And T believe you testified
16 yesterday and part of today about all of the
17 documents that you received in the mail from Tom
18 and Lenore?
19 A. Correct.
20 Q. And it was a significant stack of
21 documents?
22 A. Yes.
23 Q. Okay. And just so we're clear,
24 those mailings came from Tom and Lenore, they
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1 didn't come from Amy and they didn't come from.
2 David?
3 A. 1 got an E-mail from David,; but I
B didn't get Eighiges from Dawvid: And I know I
5 got a tape, but I'm not sure who gave me the
6 tape, so I honestly can't remember who gave me
7 the tape, but I know it was from, qfigiﬂiiig
8 fsgg_O'Rourke Investigative Agency.
9 Q. But the packages that you
10 testified about yesterday, those are with the
11 packages you received from Tom and Lenore?
12 Ay Correct.
13 Q- Not Amy and not David, just so
14 everybody is clear? )
15 . A. Yes.
16 Ok Now, contained in those packages
17 may have been letters or e-mails that either Amy
18 or David had written, but they didn't send them
19 to you, those were in the packets from Tom and
20 Lenore?
21 A. Yes. o Davidodid tell me that, yeou,
22 know, his parents had his documents because he4
23 was in prison at the time, and they're not
24 allowed to keep a lot of things. So I don't
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il know who was instructed to send what where. I
2 can tell you they came from Tom and Lenore, but
3 I was told by David that they had information

4 from him on his behalf.

5 Q. Right. And again, I'm merely

6 speaking about the mailing. Who mailed them to
i you?

8 A. The envelopes were from Tom and

9 Lenore Matusiewicz.

10 2)5 Fair enough.

11 And so as you're receiving -- as
12 you're receiving these packets, and again, it's
13 considerable, you're obviously reading through
14 them, and I believe you testified yoJ read

15 thrqugh everything because again, you're trying
16 to figure out what's going on and you want to
17 get 1t Tight?

18 A. Yost:

19 Q- I also believe I remember you

20 saying that your initial reaction as you were
21 ;% reading these packets was if thié 14s tfue( th%g
22 is absolutely horrible whqus happening to this
By | EEEL ST

24 A. ?orrect.
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1 Q. And so, ma'am, would it be fair to
2 say that if you believed, if you believed -- and
3 please let me know if you need a minute.
4 If you believed what was contained
5 in the packets, if you believed the allegations
6 about what was happening to Laura, your actions
7 would have been different than what they were;
8 is that fair to say?
9 A. If I had reasonable belief that
10 she was being abused, at the time I would have ;*{
11 taken different actions, yes.
12 Q. That makes sense; right?
13 A. I'm required to by law, so yes.
14 O If you believe the alle;ations
15 tha; were contained in the package, you
16 certainly -- your recommendation would have been
17 different to the Court?
18 A. My recommendation would have been
19 different to the Court and by law every person,
20 not just -- any person who has reasonable '%é
2. suspicion of abuse has to report it to the state
22 hotline, so I would have called the state
23 hotline number and reported it as required by
24 law.
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1 Q. And if the state hotline received?? : I
’\ll(nd.o ﬂ(ﬁ.v
. _ _ resnbed yhnt
2 the information and they believed that the when fhe
_ , PFS staff
3 allegations about what was happening to Laura deawwended fhed
sopne o bthe
4 were true, they would have acted upon it? af\eqahing |
u-f'f't"’-) COpcRrnrg
5 A. Yes, they would have. they d/dAY
C»'\(_(’ -A.PO/\ |+4
1
6 Q. And if when you made your PNPE%Q&'
-
7 recommendation to the judge, she believed that
8 the allegations that were happening to Laura
9 were accurate, she would have acted upon it?
10 A. Yes, she would have.
11 Qs And if the attorney that was
12 appointed, I believe you called it a Fraser
13 attorney?
©
14 A. Correct.
15 " Q. If the attorney that was appointed
16 to represent the child or children's interest
4] believed that the allegations were true about
e r///
a8 A. Yeah. T just want to clarify one
21 thing, she was not appointed to represent their

22 interest, she was appointed solely to represent
23 their wishes. 1It's a very limited, very limited
24 scope. But if she had uncovered any information
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Q- And if the state hotline received;tp“- » LmV
=¥} v .

: ; : Yesh 6 ed ot
the information and they believed that the whern fhe

i ; DFS shaff
allegations about what was happening to Laura decwented fhod
Ssome€ ofb the

were true, they would have acted upon it? A\ g apng
Ldffee copcernirg
K. Yes, they would have. they d dnY
actk wpon .
: e he.r
0. And if when you made your P pmﬁﬁa.

recommendation to the judge, she believed that
the allegations that were happening to Laura
were accurate, she would have acted upon it?

A. Yes, she would have.

Q. And if the attorney that was
appointed, I believe you called it a Fraser
attorney?

A. Correct.

Qi If the attorney that was appointed
to represent the child or children's interest
believed that the allegations were true about
what was happening to Laura, they would have
acted, he or she would have acted differently?

A. Yeah. I just want to clarify one
thing, she was not appointed to represent their
interest, she was appointed solely to represent
their wishes. 1It's a very limited, very limited

scope. But if she had uncovered any information
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il that gave her a reasonable suspicion that any of
2 the three children were being abused, as a

3 person, not as a court appointed fiduciary body,
4 but as a person she was required to report that
5 to the State of Delaware.

6 Qs And it would be fair to say that

q had she believed that the allegations about what
8 was happening to Laura were true, she would have
9 acted differently than she did, her

10 recommendations may have been different and that
11 type of thing?

12 A. I can say that probably, but I'm
13 not her, I don't know what she was thinking, but
14 I can tell you that by law if she haJ reasonable
i suspicions that any of the girls were being

16 abused, she was required by law to report it as
i, a person in the State of Delaware.

18 (O) Ma'am, would you also agree with

19 me that even if you believed the allegations
20 about what was happening to Laura were true, and
2 the judge believed the allegations about what
22 was happening to Laura were true, you could
23 disagree on what the remedy should be?
24 A. I don't know about if we could
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1 disagree. I'm trying to figure out what you're
2 asking me. I mean, there is no disagreement

3 that all of us have under Delaware statute an

4 obligation to report it. So I don't think any

5 of us would disagree on that issue. The statute
6 is very clear. Any person, reasonable

7 suspicion, you shall report, done. So I don't

8 think any of us would have disagreed on that, as
9 anyone who has ever represented children or

10 parents or would know that you have an

11 obligation to report it. It's not debatable,

1.2 it's not questionable. You can't report it to
13 your supervisor and let them report it. It is
14 you who has the obligation as an indgvidual in
15 the State of Delaware that must report it. 8o I
16 don't think we would differ on that.

557 If you're asking me --

18 Q. Let me ask it this way. Maybe

19 this will be a little clearer. Let's step away
20 from this case just for a second. Let's say you
21 were representing -- you were appointed as an

22 attorney guardian ad litem, and you find X set
23 of facts to be true. You go before a court and
24 the Court agrees with you that X set of facts
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1 are Crue:

2 A. Yes.

3 Q. You as the attorney guardian ad
4 litem can recommend Y as what you think the

5 course of action should be?

6 A. Yes.

7 Q. The judge, although he or she

8 agrees with you that X set of facts are true,
9 could decide that Z course of action is what
10 they will take?

i | A. Yes.

12 Q. Okay.

1.3 A. The Court does not always agree
14 with my position, absolutely. And tﬁéy don't
15 have el It's an independent decision maker.
16 G, And what I can promise you is they
15 don't follow my recommendations, either.

18 A. Exactly.

19 Q. So in that scenario, X is agreed
20 to by everybody. Everybody believes X to be
21 true, but you want Y to happen, and suggest Y to
22 happen. The Court decides to do Z.

23 A. Yes. That is possible, as a

24 hypothetical, yes.
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1 Q. And you could be so convinced that
2 Y should happen that you could think the course
3 and conduct of Z is wrong?

4 A. Yes, I could.

5 Q. And,; dn faet, you could be so

6 convinced that Y should happen, when the judge
7 says let's do 2, you could be offended by that?
8 You could say Z, doing Z is a tragedy?

9 A. I mean, yes. Have I represented
10 particularly people in Family Court where I

11 thought -- I had a parent recently that I was
12 appointed to represent, which is not typically
13 the side I'm on. I always represent the

14 children. But I was appointed to reé}esent a
15 pargnt who someone was trying to take their

16 child away from them, a relative. And I was

15 charged with representing the parent, and

18 advocating for the parent, which is the opposite
19 side of where I have been for ten, twelve years.
20 But I understood and acknowledged
21 some of the allegations and am still able to

22 advocate my client's position to the Court.

23 Ultimately that court disagreed with me. Was I
24 upset by it? I think lawyers like to win. We
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1 fight with each other and one side wins and one
2 side loses, sometimes there is a compromise. I
3 wasn't personally devastated or upset by the

4 decision, it just sort of is what it is. I

5 advised the client and I move on.

6 I will tell you with children, I

7 do try to do exactly what is in their best

8 interest because they don't really have a voice,
9 they're young, they're not capable of telling

10 people what their positions are in court. They
Tl can't come in here, this scares them to death to
12 come into court like this, and they can't come
13 in and tell the judge all these things, so I

14 find that my role is extremely imporgant to

15 present their best interest because in a lot of
16 these cases, the parents, the state, the parents
17 disagree with each other and they're all

18 fighting with each other and nobody is there to
19 be the neutral party who says hey, put your

20 stuff aside and let's look at what's best.

21 So I do take it seriously and if
22 the Court doesn't agree, the Court doesn't

23 agree. If other sides don't agree, then they

24 don't agree. And it just sort of comes out
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where it is and you know you address it the way

you can. You appeal it, you challenge it or you

find other solutions, or you, you know, hope --

I lost one of my first cases, I didn't get what
I wanted for the child, hoped for the best. I

don't know what -- I know, I learned

subsequently what happened to that child, but
it's a decision you just move on from.
Q. And you've learned to do that in
your role as a professional and as an attorney?
A. I learned to do that in my role as
a mental health professional because patients
come back and don't do

-

what's recommended and you can't help everybody,

repeatedly, you know,

but yes, you have to separate yourself and move
forward.

Q. Absolutely. And conceptually, you
would agree that there could be instances where
you felt so strongly that X was what was in the
best interest of the child, that if a judge
decided to do Z -- and let me use the same
letters I was using last time. If you decide Y
'S0 dnthe bestlimterest ofsthe ©hild, and the

judge decided to do Z, that you thought was not
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2452
1 in the best interest of the child and may, in
2 fact, put the child in harm's way, you would be
3 offended by that, you would view that as a
4 tragedy, just like any of us would?
5 A. I don't know if I would be
6 offended, but I would not be happy with the
7 decision.
8 Q- Fair enough. And so again,
9 conceptually you can agree with me that even
10 though both or all parties can agree that X set
g% ) of facts is accurate, you could decide Y is the
12 course of action, judge could decide Z is the
1.3 course of action, the Frasier attorney could
14 decide M is the course of action, th; parties'
15 ind;vidual attorneys could also decide that
16 different course of actions are what are most
17 appropriate?
18 A. Yeah. I mean that's the whole
19 reason we all end up in court in pretty much
20 every case. If we all agreed or could work it
24 out, all of us would not be in court on a
22 regular basis, every day or every month. I mean
23 that's -- and that's one of the ways I explain
24 it to the kids, is one of your parents wants one
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3
1 thing for you, the other parent wants the other
2 thing for you, and they can't agree and so the
3 judge is going to decide. We take it to the
4 Court and the Court is going to make a decision.
5 We all argue our positions, but the judge gets
6 to do what the judge wants to do after
7 considering all of the information that we
8 provide to the Court. We may win, we may lose,
9 but it's ultimately the Court that makes the
10 decision.
bl Q. And I guess the only slight
12 distinction I would make in your scenario is I
13 want it to be clear, that everybody could come
14 up with different opinions and diffe;ent
15 strategies as to what should happen with the
16 children or what should -- how to best resolve
17 that 'scenario, even if they agree on the core X
18 set of facts?
19 A. I would agree with that, yes, that
20 everybody could agree on facts. Lathink in this
21 case I don't think there was any dispute that --
22 like the different terms of ways to terminate
23 parental rights, one of them is that a parent
24 has committed a felony against the children. No
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one was disputing that David had been convicted |

0
and pled guilty of international parental d:?{f(fV“Le
\_-"% '{r"“
kidnapping, which is a felony under the statu ?h&g ~ Y&A&
nt ples
Nobody disagreed. CQ-l+ P v o~
Guac 174 7
. . L(h\mt \fow
Q. And I think you would agree with v € No
&,,’lm o F

me, we can even take it out of the context of aNMW‘*hkq’
this case and just speak, we can apply that same |
theory, that same line of logic generally,
everybody could agree on X, but the different
parties involved could have different ways to

resolve 1it?

A. Suggestions to resolve it, yes.
Q. Okay.
L ]
A The Court doesn't, unfortunately,
get the ability to, you know —-- they consider

multiple ones, but in the end the judge has to
make a decision.

Q. Right. And I understand that.
And at the risk of beating a dead horse, you
could agree or disagree with the judge's

decision?

A. Yes, I can.
0. As could all the other parties?
A. Yes.
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1 0. So ma'am, and finally, would you
2 agreeswith me that in the course of receiving
3 all. oéofithis material from Tom and Lenore,
4 included in those several packets, was a report
5 that they took and passed a lie detector test
6 saying they believed these allegations to be
q true about what was Happening with Laura?
8 A. Well, actually I never received
9 the lie detector tests from Lenore, Tom
10 Matusiewicz, Amy Gonzalez or David Matusiewicz.
11 Q. That was not included in any of
12 the packets?
13 A. Never.

P
14 Q. Okay.
1.5 - A. I received that from somewhere
16 else.
17 Q. Okay. Then I apologize. You are
18 aware that it existed at some point. You did
19 see it?
20 A. It was sent to me by the girls'
21 school and it was sent, North Star Elementary
22 and it was sent to me by Doctor Bocanegra.
23 Q. Okay.
24 MR. EDELIN: Thank you, Your
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1 Honor. ©Nothing else.
2 MR. IBRAHIM: May I, sir?
3 The Court: Yes.
4 BY MR. IBRAHIM:
5 Qu Good morning, Ms. Lawson. How are
6 you?
7 A. Good morning. How are you.
8 Q. I'm good. Thank you. I just have
9 really one brief area I'd like to talk to you
10 about. EE‘Delaware, correct me if I'm wrong,
i there is a.statutory provision that allows for, >¥§
12 third-party visitation after parental rights are
13 terminated, coxrect?

N

14 A. _inEflé_gg££¢ct.
1.5 . MR. IBRAHIM: How do I turn this
16 Elmo on? Thank you.
157 BY MR. IBRAHIM:
18 Q) Attorney Lawson, I'm just going to
19 first put up the first page of this document.
20 Do you recognize the statute and the provision?
21 A. Mieiseameia swPdaselie 1737 6 F the
22 Delaware Code.
23 Q. Excellent. I'm going to turn to
24 or at least direct you to a specific provision
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1 which I'm presuming you anticipate I'm going to.
2 A. Possibly.
3 Q. AL TSpight " Section Dy,it talk
4 5 about if a parents' rights have been terminated?
5 A. Fiesw
6 Q. In the child with whom a party

Dad v T hoth

~ohen-ed seeks third-party visitation, the terminated

(‘D/ jir‘l-. -

ﬁ:erkV“Lf“hh; parent and the terminated parents relatives are
fD\,kg owr -

q+ﬁmney prohibited from filing third-party visitation
Anny bat|er.
unless.
e
A. Unless.
ey
12 0. So it's possible so long as
13 certain conditions apply?
L J
14 A. Correct.
15 Q. The first one is three years have .

16 ;*/to pass?
e G

i 7 A. Correct.
18 Q. Since the termination. S in this

1.9 a*ﬂ case if my memory serves me correctly, the

20 termination was Auqust 18th, 201172
21 A. Right.
22 Q So it would have been August
23 % 18th ——
(=
24 A. 2014.
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1 Q. 2014. Okay. And before I turn

2 the page, let me just highlight. And then

3 there's an or?

4 A. Correct.

5 Q. It's not that both of these have

6 to apply, one of these has to apply?

7 A. Right.

8 Qs And then there's a second part

9 talking about if, if there was a situation of an
10 adoption and the parents or the person that

17! adopted the child had made an agreement that

12 hey, listen at some time later on I'll allow

13 visitation, is that a fair paraphrase of that?
14 A. T don*t know; I think i;'s the top
15 sec;ion. I know there's something about the

16 age, a certain age, but so can you move it so I
1 can see it? I don't read these every single

18 day. Sorry.

19 Q. Okay. I'll give you an

20 opportunity to read it, just 1lift your head when
21 you're prepared.

22 A. I see what it says. I will be

23 honest with you. I'm not sure how the word

24 adoptive parent is interpreted, because I know
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—

t an adoptive parent is. If you're looking
this in term of this case with these parents,
@ it says the adoptive parent, if there was
y one adoptive parent, I believe and I may be
ng, I haven't reserved it, but I believe this
referring to when a child is adopted.

Q. Right.

A. By one parent, so the other
pnts don't have rights or are deceased or
%thing happens and they are adopted by a
ple person. Or, you know, if their rights
e terminated as of both parents and a single

;

ents adopts them. So I'm not sure.

Q- I think we can agree that it's the
st section that would apply in this situation

someone such 45 a relative or even if David

usiewicz wanted to, that after three years he

—_—

1ld fall under ision to have the

lity to a
A. I believe that's correct.
Qe Okay.

A. That they would have three years

petition, yes.

Q. They would have to wait for thre

-—

Hawkins Reporting Service
North King Street - Wilmington, Delaware 19801
(302) 658-6697 FAX (302) 658-8418

A2176




Case 1:13-cr-00083-GAM Document 291 Filed 06/18/15 Page 58 of 325 PagelD #: 5120

2460

1 years to pass?
2 A. Yes.

—_—
3 Q. Okay. And then there is a section
4 that provides the contents of the third-party
5 visitation provision?
6 A, Yes.
7 MR. IBRAHIM: Your Honer, I'm
8 going to ask that this be marked AG Defense
9 Exhdbace T
10 The Court: Any objection,
A, Government?
1.2 MR. McANDREWS: ILt's a statute;
13 Your Honor, so I don't want it to become
14 confusing, Your Honor. .
15 . The Court: Purpose of
16 identification is fine. I'l1l accept that.
14 MR. IBRAHIM: May I approach the
18 witness with the document?
19 The Court: You may.
20 BY MR. IBRAHIM:
21 Q. And you're doing -- I was going to
2. ask you to take a look at it. Let me know 1if
23 those three pages are a complete reproduction of
24 that statute.
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1 . A. Well, I have to be honest, I'm not
2 sure. I can tell you that this is a complete
3 Chapter 24, but I don't know -- I don't memorize
- how many parts of this are, so I'm not sure.
5 Q. Okay.
6 A. I mean, it looks like the Delaware
7 Code, you know, this is the way it would appear
8 in our computer. The sections are, you know, in
9 the right order. I just can't tell you this is
10 the entire section or, you know, 1f there's
i more.
152 The Court: And counsel, any
13 relevance to this will be covered by the Court's

N

14 instructions.
15 ) MR. IBRAHIM: Yes. Okay.
16 BY MR. IBRAHIM:
157 Q. Let me put it to you this way and
18 I appreciate your sense of accuracy. tYs fair
19 to say that third-party visitation would permit
20 a relative to apply for wvisitation after three
21 years have passed since the termination of
22 parental rights?
23 A. ifbeliewes that 1s correct.
24 However, what I can't find in here is I
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1 believe -- I don't know if there's some
2 Pimitation 1 f the child, ig adopted. I'm not --
3 but this is what this provision does say. I'm
4 just not sure if there's another section that
5 limits that in certain circumstances.
6 Q. And as an attorney, you would do
7 legal research to determine whether or not, 1if I
8 were a client asking you that, whether or not
9 that were possible?
10 A. €orrect. T*mean, on the facts of
1.1 phassticase Sl NdidntElhave —— 1t wds going to
12 solely be Christine and no second adoptive
13 parent, so that wasn't researched or argued or
14 considered. )
15 . €l All right.
16 MR. IBRAHIM: Thank you very much,
13 ma'am.
18 The Court: Ms. Chavar?
19 MS. CHAVAR: We have no questions
20 for this witness, Your Honor.
21 The Court: Any redirect for this
22 witness?
23 MR. McANDREW: Yes, Your Honor.
24 BY MR. McANDREW:

Hawkins Reporting Service
715 North King Street - Wilmington, Delaware 19801
(302) 658-6697 FAX (302) 658-8418

A2179



Case 1:13-cr-00083-GAM Document 291 Filed 06/18/15 Page 61 of 325 PagelD #: 5123

2463
i (@8 Ms. Lawson, I just want to clarify
2 a few things. Mr. Ibrahim was just asking you
3 about third-party visitation, correct?
4 A, Yes.
5 Q. What is visitation and third-party
6 visitation as you understand it?
7 A. Well, third-party visitation can
8 be sort of all over the place. It could be with
9 the State in what the Hudson Center or some
10 other state center where it's monitored by state
14 employees through two-way mirrors and
1.2 microphones. It could be with a state employee
1.3 in the room, it could be -- it could be limited
14 to solely letter writing, it could bg limited
15 just to phone calls, it can be visitation going
16 to the child's house or meeting at a mutual
) location and seeing the child. It could be to
18 taking them on overnights. It ranges from every
19 possible thing of contact between a child and
20 someone who is seeking visitation.
21 Qu Okay.. S50 1t's Some sort of
22 contact with the child and the person who is
23 petitioning for wisitation; is that right?
24 A. Thatsficorrect..
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i Q. Birtedte s ngt T dusitody?
2 A. It is absolutely not custody. And
3 I believe that there's also -- and maybe it's
4 not in here, maybe it's somewhere else, but a
5 lot of times there's provisions where it has to
6 be in-the best interests of the child, so for
7 example, if you terminate someone's parental
8 rights ——
9 Q. Go ahead.
10 A. You know, they could seek
1. something later, but the Court would have to
12 consider if it's in the best interest of the
13 chi 1d.

°

14 Q. In determining whether visitation
15 is appropriate?
16 A. I believe, yes. I believe that --
17 Q. There's some legal standard that
18 needs to be met?
19 A. Yes, almost every time somebody
20 wants access to a child in Delaware, the Court
21 will consider the best interests of the child.
22 Q. Very well. Now, Mr. Edelin asked
23 you a few questions and I just want to go back
24 over them, because he was asking you about if
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465
1 you had believed the allegations, would your
2 actions be any different. Do you remember him
3 asking you that?
4 A. Repeat your question. I'm sorry.
5 Q. Mr. Edelin had asked you about if
6 you believed the allegations that were being
7 made of the sexual abuse, would your actions
8 have been different in this case.
9 A. Yes, they would have.
10 Q. And you remember him asking you
11 that and you said that?
12 A. Yes.
13 Q. You talked about reporting,
14 correct? ’
15 ) A. Yes.
16 s I just want to be clear for the
14 jury to whom or to where are allegations of
18 sexual abuse required to be reported because you
L3 said they were required to be reported.
20 A. Well, there is a statute which
2l most people don't read the Delaware Code, it's
22 fairly boring and most people don't know where
23 to look or what it is. But the state has a
24 ; website and there is an 800 number. The statute
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that's on their website that's published, you
can look anywhere on the state website and find
T2 It's called the Child Abuse Hotline. It's

an 800 number and you have to call that number.

(@)% So there is a hotline?
A. Yes.
3} When you're talking about

reporting something, you're talking about
reporting it to a hotline run by the state?
A. Yes, even as an attorney guardian
ad litem, I had concerns with one child who was
in a foster home and I thought they were being
treated poorly and there was abusive language

and other things going on in the hom;, even
thoggh I am an attorney the first thing I did
was call the hotline. I didn't call the
Division of Family Services worker, I didn't go
to the Court, I did later, but my obligation is
to call the hotline, so I call the hotline and I
make a report at the moment that I know this is
going on and then I deal with it in the Family
Court through the proceeding separately.

Q. Okay. So cases that you had,

then, have started as a report and ended up in
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1 Family Court?

2 A. I have to report during a case.

3 The cases may have been reported and ended up in
< court and then I get appointed, but for me

5 personally during a case, if I have known there
6 was abuse then you report it. In my mental

7 health days, if I had a suspicion a child was

8 being abused in any way, I would call the

9 hotline and report them, yes.

10 Qs The Family Court has jurisdiction
11 over child abuse litigation?

12 A. Yes.

13 Q. So these reports when they come in
14 can often end up in Family Court bei;é dealt

15 with later on?

16 A. Yes. In my mental health days I

i 155 was called as a witness in several of those

18 cases where I reported abuse.

19 Q. All right. Now, you were also

20 asked -- I mean, just to be clear, you did not
21 believe the allegations that had been made with
22 regard to the abuse; is that right?

23 A. That's eoxrect, I did not.

24 Q. I don't want you to repeat
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1 yourself, I think you have already told us why,
2 we looked at the court's decision. Was there
3 anything in the court's factual findings that
4 you disagree with on that point?
5 A. No; I do not:.
6 Q. All right. You were also asked
7 about polygraphs, and whether you had received
8 polygraphs from Amy Gonzalez and Lenore
9 Matusiewicz?
10 A. Yes.
11 Ok Polygraphs taken of Amy Gonzalez
12 and Lenore Matusiewicz?
13 A. Correct.
®
14 0 You do recall receiving them at
1:5 some POLNE?
16 B o’
1 Q. Do you know when relative to the
18 end of the proceeding you received them?
19 A. I received them from
20 Dr. Bocanagra, so we had two hearings in
21 November, and they were like.
22 Q. %Elg?
23 A. OEF 2070, and T can look :at the
24 opinion to make sure, but --
SRRt
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e

Q. Actually if you don't remember.

A. One was the 10th and one was the

I believe. I got the polygraphs from

\

gée and I don't remember, I know it's
E or after March.

0. I dona't want to tie

B But I got them from the school who

i me and they had received them and they

“hem to me.

Q. Did you review them?

A. Yes.

0. Had you ever seen polygraph

s before? -

A. Maybe in law schools, but not
iy .
| 0. So you're not an expert on
aphs?

A. No.

Q. Let me ask you, after you reviewed

did it change your view at all?

A. NG, it did het.

—
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2470
MR. McANDREW: Thank you. Nothing
further, Your Honor.
MR. EDELIN: Nothing, Your Honor.
Thank you.
MR. IBRAHIM: May I?
RECROSS-EXAMINATION
BY MR. IBRAHIM:
Q. Hello again.
A. Hello.
Q. Just some quick questions on this

visitation definition.

Family Court website;

A.

Q.

You're familiar with the
correct?

Yes.
-«

And on the website, there is -- if

someone is interested in third-party visitation

or something of that nature,

the Court sends

them a bunch of forms they can f£ill out;

correct?

A.

Q.

EolvlesiEhEE SES

Yes.
But somewhere on there, it tells

not legal advice, this is really

just telling you what the forms are?

A.

ThastYe correct .

MR. IBRAHIM: Thank you.
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il The Court: All right. You may
2 step down.
3 THE WITNESS: Thank you.
4 MR. McCALL: Your Honor, we would
5 call Victor Weedn.
6 The Court: All right.
7 THE CLERK: Please place your left
8 hand on the bible and raise your right hand.
9 State your full name for the record.
10 THE WITNESS: My name is Victor
11 Walter Weedn. I spell my name W-E-E-D-N, five
1.2 letters.
13

s

14 VICTOR WALTER WEEDN, M.D.
15 . the deponent herein, having first
16 been duly sworn on oath, was
17 examined and testified as follows:
18 MR. McCALL: Your Honor, may I
19 proceed?
20 The Court: You may.
21 Mr. McCALL: Thank you.
22 DIRECT EXAMINATION
23 BY MR. McCALL:
24 Q. Thank you. Good morning, sir.
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